# **AGREEMENT**

# **BETWEEN**

# **TOWNSHIP OF BERKELEY**

# **AND**

# THE INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF TEAMSTERS LOCAL 97

# JANUARY 1, 2018 THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2022



# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE	TITLE	PAGE
	PREAMBLE	3
1	RECOGNITION AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT	4
2	COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROCEDURE	5
3	DUES DEDUCTIONS	6
4	UNION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES	7
5	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	8
6	SHOP STEWARDS	9
7	EMPLOYEE RIGHTS	10
8	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	12
9	HOLIDAYS, VACATION & LEAVES (NON-	14
	MEDICAL)	
10	SICK & MEDICAL LEAVES	17
11	EDUCATION	18
12	HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME	20
13	INSURANCE	21
14	LONGEVITY	22
15	SALARIES	23
16	OTHER PROVISIONS	24
17	RETIREMENT BENEFITS	25
18	AGREEMENT	26
	APPENDIX- STEP GUIDES	27
	APPENDIX- TITLES	41



This agreement entered into this \_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_, 20\_\_\_\_, by and between the Township of Berkeley, in the county of Ocean, New Jersey, a municipal corporation of the State of New Jersey (hereinafter referred to as the "Township") and The International Brotherhood of Teamsters, Local 97, located at 136 Central Avenue, Clark NJ 07066, (hereinafter referred to as the "Union") represents the complete and final understanding on all bargainable issues between the Township and the Union.

3

## RECOGNITION AND SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

The Township hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative for the purpose of collective negotiations with respect to terms and conditions of employment including all wages and hours for the following unit:

- 1. All white collar permanent employees employed by Berkeley Township including and limited to Schedule A of this Agreement. Any dispute over inclusion of new titles shall be subject to a decision by the Public Employment Relations Commission.
- 2. All grandfathered Part Time employees (working less than 35 hours per week) as defined in Schedule A of this Agreement.
- 3. All Crossing Guards.

This unit excludes all permanent blue collar employees, civilian telecommunications operators, senior telecommunications operators and police dispatchers, policemen, confidentials, professionals, craft and managerial and supervisory employees of the Township. (Sometimes defined as "assistant" or "deputy" in title.) Part time employees hired after January 1, 2014 shall not be included in the bargaining unit unless they are grandfathers as per Schedule A of this agreement or have the title of Crossing Guard.



# **COLLECTIVE BARGAINING PROCEDURE**

- A. Collective bargaining with respect to rates of pay, hours of work, or other conditions of employment shall be conducted by the duly authorized bargaining agent of each party.
- B. Collective bargaining meetings shall be held at times and places mutually convenient at the request of either party.
- C. Not later than June 1<sup>st</sup> of the calendar year in which this Agreement expires, the Township and the Union agree to enter into collective bargaining negotiations following Chapter 123, Public Law 1974.
- D. Neither party in any negotiations shall have control over the selection of the negotiating representatives of the other party, except that the Union shall be held to only ten (10) negotiations committee members.
- E. This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing duly executed by both parties. Nothing herein shall prohibit the Township from modifying those rules, regulations and policies which do not directly diminish salaries and fringe benefits under this Agreement. If no successor is reached all aspects stay in place except no increases in salary shall happen until an agreement is reached.



## **DUES DEDUCTIONS**

- A. Upon receiving the written authorization and assignment of an Employee covered by this Agreement, the Township agrees to deduct from the first pay of each month membership dues in such amounts fixed, pursuant to the By-Laws and Constitution of the Union during the full term of this agreement and any extension of renewal thereof. Said moneys, together with a list of such deductions shall be transmitted to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Union by the fifteenth (15<sup>th</sup>) day of each month following the monthly pay period in which the deduction took place.
- B. The Union shall indemnify and hold the Employer harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits and other forms of liability, including liability for reasonable counsel fees and other legal costs which may arise out of or by reason of any action taken or not taken by the Employer in connection with this provision.
- C. The Township agrees that it shall deduct full membership dues from those members of the bargaining unit who have authorized such deductions in accordance with N.J.S.A. 52:14-15.9e and agrees to transmit said dues to the union on a monthly basis. The union shall be responsible for notifying the Township of the amount of full member dues and any changes thereto. The Township further agrees that pursuant to N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.14 it shall not encourage full dues paying members to resign or relinquish their membership in the union. Unit members electing not to join the union may be assessed a fee for services pursuant to a fee schedule developed by the union as permitted by law.

a

## UNION RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES

- A. Four (4) bulletin boards will be made available to the Union for the purpose of posting Union matters relating to meetings, dues, entertainment, health, safety and welfare of the employees who are members of the Association and of general Union activities. Union members shall not post any materials containing anything derogatory, inflammatory, insulting or demeaning against the Township, Township employees or Township residents.
- B. Union notices can also be arranged to be attached to bargaining unit members' paychecks by delivering either through mail, email or by courier to the Township before the pay period ends. Union notices shall not consist of any materials containing anything derogatory, inflammatory, insulting or demeaning against the Township, Township employees or Township residents. All such notices are subject to approval by the Township Administrator, Mayor or designee.
- C. The Union shall have the right to hold meetings in Township facilities, provided these meetings are scheduled in accordance with Township policy and do not interfere with normal Township operations. Union members shall have the right to use copy machines, fax machines, telephones and other equipment to distribute message which comply with Sections A and B of this Article and do not interfere with normal Township operations.
- D. The Union Business Agent and any Shop Steward shall have admission to Township premises at anytime during working hours provided such admission causes no interference with normal Township operations or Employees' duties.
- E. Any change in policy, procedure or regulation shall not be made until notification has been made to the Union, unless it is an emergency. In that case, the Union shall be made aware as soon as possible following such emergency implementation. The Union has the right to request any policy, regulation, ordinance or memo that affects the members of the Bargaining Unit.

Man

#### **MANAGEMENT RIGHTS**

- A. The Township maintains the exclusive right to direct the work force of employees and the operations of the various departments. This shall include, but not limited to:
  - 1. Direction and operation generally
  - 2. Type of work to be performed (within title)
  - 3. Work assignments (within title)
  - 4. Machinery, tools and equipment to be used
  - 5. Hours of work (within the Agreements contained herein)
  - 6. Hiring, promotions, discharge, demotions and disciplinary actions against employees, all in accordance with NJ Statutes Title 11A, (Civil Service Act) and/or NJAC Title 4A and its amendments as may be enacted from time to time.
  - 7. Making, drafting and enforcing rules and regulations governing the same and safety of its employees.
- B. The Township may establish and enforce reasonable rules and regulations which do not conflict with this Agreement for the department operations and conduct of personnel thereof and maintenance of discipline.
- C. It is not the intent of this Agreement to violate any of the Township laws, laws of the State of New Jersey, or laws of the United States of America. If any provision of this Agreement to any Employee hereby covered shall be found contrary to law, such provision of application shall have the effect only to the extent permitted by law.



## **SHOP STEWARDS**

- A. The Township recognizes the right of the Union to designate stewards and their alternates herein after referred to as Shop Stewards for the enforcement of this Agreement. The Union shall provide the Township with a written list of Shop Stewards and alternates and notify the Township of any changes to said list.
- B. The authority of Shop Stewards and alternates so designated by the Union shall be limited to and shall not exceed the following duties and activities:
  - 1. The investigation and presentation of grievances in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.
  - 2. The transmission of such messages and information which shall originate with and be authorized by the Local Union.
  - 3. Participation in collective bargaining activities and negotiations of this Agreement.
- C. Shop Stewards shall be allowed sufficient time during the regular working hours without loss of pay to see that the terms and conditions of this Agreement are observed, provided there is no interference with normal Township operations or Employees' duties.
- D. In the event negotiations, grievance procedures, fact-finding and other meetings are mutually scheduled at any time during working hours, members of the respective negotiations committee, including (but not limited to) Shop Stewards, shall suffer no loss in pay.
- E. Shop Stewards shall be granted release time from employment without loss of pay to attend seminars, conferences and other Union activities off-site provided the Township receives a written request from the Union stating the reason and length of time needed to attend said activities no later than two (2) weeks before the date of the event on Union letterhead. The Township shall not be required to grant more than fifteen (15) days of such leave per calendar year. The granting of leaves for Union business shall be at the sole discretion of the Township provided the denial of said leave is not arbitrary or capricious in nature.
- F. No Shop Steward shall be discriminated against by any Township employee or official because of faithful performance as a Shop Steward nor shall any Shop Steward be removed from the job until notice has been given to the President of the Union.



#### **EMPLOYEE RIGHTS**

- A. There shall be no discrimination, interference, or coercion by the Township or any of its agents against the employees represented by the Union because of membership or activity in the Union. The Union shall not intimidate or coerce employees into membership. Neither the Township not the Union shall discriminate against any employee because of race, creed, color, national origin, religion, sexual orientation, gender or political affiliation.
- B. No employee shall be reprimanded in the presence of a co-worker, member of the public or other member of the Township's staff by any supervisor, administrator or Township official without justifiable, substantive reasons.
- C. Any employee shall have the right to have a Union representative accompany them in all disciplinary procedures filed against them by their supervisor or the Township.
- D. All disciplinary proceedings filed against any employee by the supervisor or the Township shall only be for just cause and in accordance with NJ Statutes Title 11A and/or NJAC Title 4A and their amendments as may be enacted from time to time. No notice of this action shall be made or posted publicly.
- E. Each employee has the right to review their personnel folder. All requests shall be submitted in writing to the supervisor and will be honored within three (3) days of the receipt of the request. All materials contained in the employee's personnel folder will be open to examination by the employee, their supervisor, the Township Business Administrator, the Mayor, legal counsel retained by the Township and any other Township official. Any viewing of the personnel file shall be in the presence of the Township Administrator or his/her designee. Any material placed in the employee's present folder shall be copied to the affected employee. An employee can request a copy of anything in their file after the review. An employee has the right to attach a rebuttal to any document in their file, at any time.
- F. An employee shall be provided with a copy of a specific rule or regulation at issue by the supervisor or the Township.
- Employees shall comply with such rules and regulations and all employees shall promptly and efficiently execute the instructions and order of their supervisors unless it is a matter of safety or health. If the employee or the Union believes an instruction or order is unreasonable or unjust, the employee shall comply with the order or instruction but with the further provision that such employee or Union may treat the order or instruction as a grievance to be handled in accordance with the Grievance Procedure defined in this Agreement.



## **GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE**

For the purposes of this Agreement, the term "grievance" means an appeal by an individual employee or the Union on behalf of an individual employee or group of employees from the interpretation, application or violation of the terms and conditions of this collective bargaining agreement and any past practices mutually performed by both parties.

If at any step in the procedure, the decision is not appealed within the appropriate prescribed time, such grievance will be considered closed and there shall be no further appeal or review.

#### Step One

The Business Agent or Shop Steward shall present the grievance in writing to the supervisor or his/her designee. A grievance must be filed within five (5) working days after the event that gave rise to the grievance. The supervisor or his/her designee shall answer the grievance in writing within five (5) working days.

#### Step Two

If the grievance is not resolved at Step One, or if no answer is received by the Union within the time set forth in Step One, the Union may present the written grievance to the Township Administrator within five (5) working days after receiving the written response from the supervisor or alternatively no response. The Township Administrator shall forward a written reply within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the written grievance. Upon request of either party, a meeting may take place during this time period.

#### Step Three

In the event no answer is received from the Township Administrator within the specific time, or the grievance is not resolved at Step Two, the Union may move the grievance to the Mayor within five (5) working days after receiving the written response from the Township Administrator or alternatively no response. The Mayor shall forward a written reply within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the written grievance. Upon request of either party, a meeting may take place during this time period.

#### Step Four

If the grievance has not been settled by the parties at Step Three, or if no answer in writing by the Mayor has been received by the Union with the time period of Step Three, the Union may demand arbitration of the grievance within thirty (30) calendar days of the receipt of the Step Three decision or when the Step Three decision should have been rendered.



#### Step Five- Arbitration

If a grievance is not settled under Step Four, such grievance shall, at the request of the Union or the Township, be referred to NJPERC as mutually agreed to by the parties for selection of an arbitrator according to its rules. All submissions to arbitration must be made within thirty (30) calendar days.

The arbitrator shall conduct a hearing and render a decision in writing with findings of fact and conclusions. The arbitrator shall not have the power to add to, subtract from or modify the provisions in this Agreement. The arbitrator shall confine a decision solely to the interpretation and application of the Agreement and shall confine the decision to the one (1) precise issue submitted for arbitration unless the parties agree otherwise. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding on the parties subject to the rights of the parties with respect to case law and statutes. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be divided equally by the parties. Any other costs of arbitration, including the presentation of witnesses, shall be borne by the party incurring same.

Advance Step Filing- In the event a grievance affects more than one (1) member or any class of workers or members (Class Action) or if it involves the termination of an employee, then the grievance shall commence directly at Step Two by the Union.



# **HOLIDAY, VACATION & LEAVES (non-medical)**

#### A. Holiday Leave

The following shall be recognized as holidays and included in the employee's regular pay period.

New Year's Day

Columbus Day

Martin Luther King's Birthday

Veterans Day

Presidents Day

Thanksgiving Day

Good Friday

Friday after Thanksgiving

Memorial Day

Day before Christmas

Independence Day

Christmas Day

Labor Day

Floating Holiday

Election Day

Employees seeking to schedule the floating holiday as time off must make a request for the floating holiday not less than three (3) working days in advance. The Township Administrator may approve the carryover of a floating holiday if the employee can demonstrate the inability to use the day during the year in which it was allotted.

#### B. Personal Leave

Employees shall be entitled to up to three (3) days per year with pay on a prorated basis depending on the amount of time the employee has worked during the year. New employees will be entitled to personal leave as follows:

After four (4) months	one (1) day
After eight (8) months	one (1) day
After one (1) year	one (1) day

Said personal leave shall not be cumulative.

Part-time bargaining unit members shall receive pro-rata personal days as follows:

There shall be a two (2) hour minimum notice for personal leave requests, except in cases of emergency.

## C. Bereavement Leave

Each Employee may be granted up to six (6) consecutive work days leave with pay upon the death of an immediate family member. The first three (3) days must include either the day of death or day of funeral, whichever the employee chooses. The leave may be extended three (3) additional days at



the sole discretion of the Mayor or Township designee. The granting of this extension is not subject to the grievance procedure. Immediate family shall include spouse, child, parent, grandparent, brother, sister, grandchild, uncle or aunt of the employee, including step and in-law relationships, or other member of the immediate family. One (1) day leave will be given to attend the funeral services of a spouse's aunt, uncle or grandparent.

- 1. All such leave will not be taken until the immediate supervisor is notified of the incidence of bereavement.
- 2. Proof of death may be required and, if so, must be submitted promptly upon return from said leave.

#### D. Vacations

Each Employee shall receive vacation time as per the following chart. Crossing Guards shall receive pro-rata Civil Service vacation allowance.

Length of Employment	Vacation Time
During the first year	One (1) day per month of employment
Beginning the second year to four (4) years	Twelve (12) days per year
Beginning the fifth year to nine (9) years	Eighteen (18) days per year
Beginning tenth (10) year	Twenty (20) days per year
Beginning of eleventh (11) year to twelve (12) years	Twenty-one (21) days per year
Beginning of thirteenth (13) year to fourteen (14) years	Twenty-two (22) days per year
Beginning of fifteenth (15) year to sixteen (16) years	Twenty-three (23) days per year
Beginning of seventeenth (17) year to eighteen (18) years	Twenty-four (24) days per year
Beginning of nineteenth (19) year and beyond	Twenty-five (25) days per year

No employee shall be permitted to carryover unused vacation time except for business necessity and only upon approval of the Mayor or Township designee as per Civil Service Commission rules and regulations. All requests for vacation leave shall be acted and decided upon within fifteen (15) calendar days of the submitted written request.

No vacations are considered approved until the employee receives a copy of the written request approved by the Mayor or Township designee.

In the event that more than one (1) employee in a job classification within a department requests vacation at the same time, the Township shall endeavor to honor all requests. However, when vacations cannot be granted to all employees within a certain specific time period, the employee with the greatest seniority shall be granted their vacations first.



#### SICK & MEDICAL LEAVES

#### A. Sick Leave

- 1. Sick leave may be utilized by full-time employees when they are unable to perform their work by reason of personal illness, accident or exposure to contagious disease or to care for an immediate family member with any of these same issues.
- 2. All permanent full-time employees covered by this Agreement shall be granted sick leave with pay. New employees shall be entitled to one (1) day of sick leave per month of employment. After completing the first year, all employees will be entitled to fifteen (15) days of sick leave per year.
- 3. Crossing Guards shall receive the pro-rata Civil Service sick leave allowance. All other provisions of this section shall be followed.
- 4. If an employee is absent for reasons outlined above in A1, notification to their appropriate supervisor must happen no later than one-half (1/2) hour prior to the employees reporting time. Failure to notify the supervisor in a timely fashion may be cause for denial of the use of sick leave for that absence and may result in disciplinary action. Absences without notice for five (5) consecutive days shall constitute a resignation.
- 5. An employee who shall be absent on sick leave for five (5) or more consecutive working days shall be required to submit acceptable medical evidence substantiating the illness.
- 6. Whilst on sick leave an employee is limited to their residence or medical facility and may only travel to doctors or pharmacy visits. All employees, whether sick or injured, shall not leave the State of New Jersey for more than one (1) twenty-four hour (24) period, except with the written approval of the employee's supervisor or designee, or by written authorization of the employee's attending physician.
- 7. Sick Leave Verification. An employee who has been absent on sick leave and has used fifteen (15) days in less than one (1) calendar year consisting of occurrences of less than five (5) days in length, shall be required to submit acceptable medical evidence for any additional sick leave in that year. If the employee has a medical condition that requires absences of one (1) day intermittently, a document from a medical professional substantiating the chronic condition and need for intermittent leave must be provided, however, the doctor's written certification can cover a six (6) month period. At any time, a supervisor may require proof of illness of an employee on sick leave, provided the request is not arbitrary or capricious in nature.
- 8. The supervisor may require an employee who has been absent because of personal illness to be examined at the expense of the Township at a doctor of the Township's choosing in order to return to work. Such examination shall establish whether the employee is capable of performing the normal duties of the position and that returning will not jeopardize the safety and health of other

Car

employees. The Township reserves the right to require verification at any time for any reason at the expense of the Township.

- 9. Abuse of sick leave shall be cause for disciplinary action.
- 10. An employee may be directed to take sick leave by the employee's supervisor. If an employee does not accept the direction, the Township may direct the employee to report to the Township designated physician for an exam, at the Township's expense.

#### B. FMLA &FLA Leaves

- 1. Employees may be granted a leave of absence without pay in accordance with the Federal Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA), 29 USCA §2601 et seq. and/or the New Jersey Family Leave Act (FLA) NJSA 34:11B-1 et seq. and Township policy.
- a. To be entitled to an FMLA and/or FLA leave, employees must meet all statutory criteria and requirements of the Township policy. For FMLA leave, an employee must be employed by the Township for at least twelve (12) months. In addition, in the twelve (12) months immediately preceding the beginning of the leave, employees must have worked at least 1,250 hours, excluding overtime. For the FLA leave, employees must have been employed by the Township for the previous twelve (12) months and have worked at least 1,000 hours, excluding overtime.
- b. After an employee has been out of work for five (5) days or more, the Township shall have the right to convert the employee's status to FMLA.
- c. The Township shall be permitted concurrency with utilization of leave time. An employee may be entitled to leave under both the FMLA and the FLA. When this occurs, the leave simultaneously counts against the employee's entitlement under both laws. Employees taking FMLA and/or FLA leave will be required to use all available accrued sick, vacation and personal days during the leave. The use of accrued time will not extend the leave period. After exhausting the accrued leave time, the employee will not be paid by the Township for the remainder of the FMLA and/or FLA leave.
- d. Eligible employees can take up to twelve (12) weeks of unpaid FLA leave during any twenty-four (24) months period for the birth or adoption of a child or serious illness of a parent, parent-in-law, stepparent, child, stepchild or spouse.
- e. Eligible employees can take up to a total of twelve (12) weeks unpaid FMLA leave within a rolling twelve (12) month period for the birth or adoption of a child, to care for a parent, child or spouse who has a serious health condition or if the employee experiences a serious health condition as defined by Federal law.
  - f. Employees on FMLA and/or FLA leave will not continue to accrue longevity.
- g. Employees on FMLA and/or FLA leave will continue to be eligible for health insurance coverage under the Township's policy assuming that such benefits were provided before the leave was taken.
- h. Requests for an FMLA and/or FLA leave must be accompanied and supported by a physician's certificate. In non-emergency situations, a request for FMLA and/or FLA leave should be made at least thirty (30) calendar days in advance of the anticipated start date for the leave.



- i. The Township requires periodic reports every thirty (30) calendar days during an FMLA/FLA leave regarding the employee's status and intent to return to work.
- j. Intermittent and/or reduced schedule leave will be permitted only when it is medically necessary. Intermittent and/or reduced schedule leave will be scheduled in a manner so as to cause minimal disruption to an employee's job. Employees are expected to make every effort to schedule medical appointments and treatments outside of working hours or at such times that allow for a minimal amount of time away from work.
- k. If the reason for the leave is the employee's own serious health condition, the employee will be required to present a fitness-for-duty certification prior to being permitted to return to work. An employee who fails to return to work for five (5) consecutive work days after the expiration of the leave will be considered to have abandoned their position and will be recorded as a resignation not in good standing in accordance with Civil Service laws and regulations. An extension past the twelve (12) weeks can be requested but such requests, along with medical documentation and verification of the need for the extension must be submitted prior to the expiration of the initial leave period. The Township reserves the right to deny any request for extended leave.
- I. Upon return to work after an FMLA and/or FLA leave, an employee will be returned to the position held prior to the leave or to an equivalent position with equivalent pay, benefits and other terms and conditions of employment. A returning employee has no greater rights than the employee would have had if the employee had continued to work. Therefore, an employee may be affected by a layoff, termination or other job charge if such action would have occurred had the employee remained actively at work.

#### C. Leaves of Absence Without Pay

- 1. An application for an unpaid leave pursuant to this section shall be submitted at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the effective date of the proposed leave except in the case of emergencies.
- 2. A leave of absence without pay may be granted no more than two (2) three (3) month periods in any one (1) consecutive twelve (12) month period, excluding FMLA (if applicable). The decisions as to whether or not to grant a leave of absence without pay in accordance with this section shall be within the sole and absolute discretion of the Township. All decisions regarding leave made by the Township are not appealable through the grievance procedure. The Township shall respond to a requested leave of absence without pay within ten (10) days.
- 3. The Township has the sole and absolute discretion to extend this period of time only after the submission of a sufficient reason for an extension of such leave and the employee has appeared before the Township to request the extension in person. Furthermore, such extension shall require approval by the Director of the New Jersey Civil Service Commission and all other applicable parties.



## **EDUCATION**

The Township agrees to reimburse an employee for tuition, books and fees only for a maximum of five hundred dollars (\$500) per year for courses that are taken that are related and pertaining to an employee's category of work. The Township retains the sole discretion to determine whether a course shall be approved for reimbursement purposes. To be eligible, the employee must have one year of service in the Township and must receive approval from the Township Administrator and earn a grade of C/70% or better.

Employees attending education classes during work hours may be required to use personal or vacation leave time to attend unless the employee is maintaining existing certification required for their current employment with the Township.

An employee who attains a certification related and pertaining to an employee's Township duties may be eligible for a promotion, stipend or salary bonus at the sole discretion of the Township. The final decision of the Township is not subject to the grievance procedure.



#### HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME

A. The normal work day for all 35 hour clerical employees shall be seven (7) hours work between the hours of 8am and 5pm with thirty (30) minutes for lunch and two fifteen (15) minute breaks. The work week shall be from Monday through Friday and be considered full time at thirty five (35) hours per week.

1. Employees may combine the two fifteen (15) minute breaks to extend their lunch period to one (1) hour.

B. Public Work Clerical employees shall work a forty (40) hours per week, eight (8) hours per day Monday through Friday between the hours of 6:30am and 3pm. Employees under this provision shall be entitled to two (2) fifteen minute breaks and one thirty (30) minute lunch break daily. All work performed in excess of twelve (12) consecutive hours shall be compensated at the double time rate.

- 1. Employees may combine the two fifteen (15) minute breaks to extend their lunch period to one (1) hour.
- C. Crossing Guards shall be guaranteed a minimum of three (3) hours per day, and shall work the scheduled days as per the school district.
- D. Court Employees shall receive fifty (50¢) cents for every hour worked on "Court days" as designated by the Township. After hours callouts by the employees working in Municipal Court shall be paid fifty dollars (\$50) per event/callout regardless of whether the matter is handled by a single phone call from the employee, multiple phone calls, or an appearance at the court offices.

#### E. Overtime

- 1. An employee shall be entitled to overtime pay of one and one-half times the regular rate of pay (1 1/2) only after said employee has worked in excess of forty (40) hours in any given work week. Bereavement leave (immediate family), paid sick leave, vacation leave, personal days and holidays are to be considered as time worked for the purposes of this Section. When the township requires an employee to work in excess of forty (40) hours per week, the overtime rate (1-1/2) shall apply.
- 2. In the event an employee is called to duty on normal off-duty hours, the employee shall receive a four hour minimum pay at the overtime rate of time and one-half, provided such time is not contiguous to the employees work day and provided the employee has not received four hours notice. If the time is contiguous to the employee's work day, the employee will be paid overtime for the time actually worked.
- 3. All work performed on a Saturday or holiday will be compensated at the rate of time and one-half. All work performed on a Sunday shall be compensated for at double time and will be provided a four hour minimum of pay.
- 4. Where possible and except in the case of an emergency, a two (2) hour notification period shall be given to an employee prior to working overtime.
- 5. Availability for overtime worked shall be posted by the supervisor. Overtime shall be offered on a rotating basis within a given job classification and all employees may be required to work a reasonable amount of overtime.

Jan



F. <u>State of Emergency</u>- All employees, except Crossing Guards, shall be paid for any missed hours due to a declared State of Emergency. Declaration must be made by the Mayor or his/her designee to be considered paid.

#### **INSURANCE**

- A. The Township shall secure accident and liability insurance for all employees to provide a defense for all actions brought against an employee by a third party as a result of Township employment.
- B. The Township shall maintain in full force and effect, Worker's Compensation Insurance for all employees covered by this Agreement.
- C. All current employees (hired before the ratification of this contract) shall be provided the Direct 15 plan or equivalent.
- D. Employees hired after the ratification of this contract shall receive NJ Direct 20/30 plan.
- E. All members of the bargaining unit shall be covered under the provisions of the prescription plan handled through the New Jersey Benefits Plan (NJSHBP). Any changes as to copays/coverage/etc. to said plan by the New Jersey State Health Benefits Commission (NSHBC) shall govern the employees under the bargaining unit as to the benefit.
- F. The Township shall provide full family dental coverage to each member of the same coverage which is presently in effect. The Township's costs for such coverage are capped at the cost in effect on January 1, 1997.
- G. The insurance coverage provided herein is subject to the availability within the insurance industry. The Township reserves the right to change insurance plans or carriers or to self-insure so long as substantially equivalent benefits are provided and at least forty-five (45) days notification is provided to the Union. In the event the Union does not agree that the new plan(s) provide(s) substantially equivalent benefits, the Union may submit the matter to expedite arbitration prior to the expiration of the forty-five (45) days notification by the Township. However, if an expedited arbitration proceeding is sought, the plan shall go into effect within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days after the initial notification to the Union.
- H. All employees shall continue to contribute at the Tier 4 level of P.L. 2018, Chapter 78.



## **LONGEVITY**

A. Each employee shall be paid in addition to a longevity payment based upon completion of continuous years of employment in the Township of Berkeley in accordance with the following schedule. This payment is in addition to the employee's salary.

5 Years	\$850.00
10 Years	\$1350.00
15 Years	\$2500.00
20 Years	\$3000.00
25 Years	\$3500.00

B. Each employee shall qualify for the longevity increment on the date of the employee's anniversary of employment and such increment shall commence to accrue from and after such date.

C. Longevity pay shall be paid to each employee as part of their regular salary check. Longevity shall be included in the base salary for pension purposes. If an employee only works part of the year, the employee's longevity check shall be prorated to the extent that they only receive their regular salary check for less than a full year.

D. Seniority shall be based on Title 11A of the Civil Service Rules.



## **SALARIES**

Salary increases shall be as follows:

All members shall be placed on the applicable step guide corresponding to their work schedule and/or job title. 35 hour employees shall be placed on the 35 hour employee guide effective January 1, 2018. 40 hour employees shall be placed on the 40 hour employee guide effective January 1, 2018. All current Crossing Guards shall be placed on the Crossing Guard guide at step three (3) and shall remain at that step for the life of the contract. All new Crossing Guard hires, (hired after the ratification of the contract) shall be placed at the first step of the guide and move accordingly on an annual basis.

On-guide 35 hour employees: Effective January 1, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, every step on the guide shall be increased by 3 percent. Effective August 1, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, every member on the guide shall advance one step and every member off guide shall receive an increase of 3 percent to their base pay.

On guide 40 hour employees: Effective January 1, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, every step on the guide shall be increased by 3 percent. Effective August 1, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, every member on the guide shall advance one step and every member off guide shall receive an increase of 3 percent to their base pay.

<u>Crossing Guards:</u> Effective January 1, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022, every step on the guide shall be increased by 3 percent. Effective August 1, 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021, and 2022, every member on the first two steps of the guide shall advance one step. The Crossing Guard guide does not have an offguide option. All Crossing Guards shall remain at step 3 once step 3 is reached.



#### RETIREMENT BENEFITS

A. Upon an employee's regular retirement disability retirement resignation or death, the employee shall be entitled to time off or to compensation for accumulated and unused sick leave as follows: the Township will purchase back all accumulated sick days of any employee covered by this agreement. The maximum payment shall be \$15,000. However, employees on the Township payroll as of July 1, 1999 whose accumulated sick day payment as of July 1, 1999 would exceed the aforementioned maximum may retain the excess above the maximum which excess may not increase beyond the amount of July 1, 1999.

- B. For the purposes of this Article, retirement shall mean separation from service with the Township for other than disciplinary reasons either having reached the required age in accordance with the Public Employment Retirement System. Any employee who is separated from service for a cause arising from any disciplinary action shall not be entitled to compensation for accumulated leave.
- C. The Township agrees, for those employees retiring under the NJ State Pension Plan and where those employees meet the eligibility requirements set forth in the Township of Berkeley Resolution 89-256R that so long as the Township maintains and provides i) continuation of spousal medical insurance coverage after death of the employee and ii) reimbursement for Medicare Part B premiums, pursuant to the Township Resolution for other Township employees, they will continue to maintain the same benefit for the members of this bargaining unit.



## **OTHER PROVISIONS**

- A. Mileage- Mileage reimbursement shall be at the current IRS rate.
- B. Record Keeping- All employees are required to complete a time card/sign-in sheet (whichever is applicable) when they arrive for work and when they complete work at the end of the say. The recording on the time card/sign in sheet must be completed in ink or by using the mechanism to punch in and out as provided. Time cards/Sign in sheets must be signed by both the employee and the employee's supervisor and include the total number of hours actually worked each week. The employee's signature certifies that the actual hours worked as shown are correct.
- C. Jury Duty & Court Appearances on behalf of Township- Any employee who is absent from work because of jury duty or appearing as a witness on behalf of the Township, upon proper evidence of same being presented to the Township shall receive full pay, however, all jury pay shall be turned over to the Township.
- D. Out of Title Pay- The Township will pay the employee for all out-of title work from day one at the hourly rate to 5% above their current hourly rate as long as the employee works the full work day in the out of title work; the work is not a training assignment and the employee holds the necessary license to hold the job and perform the necessary duties and the assignment to the position is requested and/or approved in advance.
- E. Posting Procedures- All promotional opportunities or new positions shall be posted by the Township. The Township shall make every effort to post such information thirty (30) days in advance of the hiring date. A copy of each posting shall be sent to the Union Business Agent.
- F. Holiday Pay & Sick Time Usage- Employees shall not lose holiday pay if they use a sick time in accordance with the procedures set forth in this agreement either before or after the scheduled holiday.
- G. Uniform/Clothing Committee (Crossing Guards Only)- The Union and the Township shall create a Uniform Clothing Committee to discuss and decide uniforms for the Crossing Guards. The Committee shall consist of 2 Union Members and a representative of the Police Department. The Committee shall meet periodically and upon request of either party. If there is a dispute, it shall be resolved through the Administration and the decision will be binding and final on all parties.



This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties of all bargainable issues which were or could have been subject of negotiations. During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by this Agreement and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

This Agreement shall not be modified in whole or in part by the parties except by an instrument in writing executed by both parties.

If any provision of this Agreement or application of this Agreement to any employee or group of employees is held invalid by operation of law or by a court or other tribunal of competent jurisdiction, such provision shall be inoperative but all other provisions shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect.

This Agreement shall become effective as of January 1, 2018 and shall continue in full force and effect through TBD. An employee must be in the active employment of the Township to be eligible for retroactive pay and/or benefits as bargained.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals to this Agreement through their authorized representatives this  $\frac{19}{2}$  day of  $\frac{19}{2}$ ,  $\frac{20}{2}$ .

IBT Local 9

Township of Berkeley

Mayor Carmen Amato

Beverly Carle, RMC, Township Clerk

# **APPENDIX**

# **35 HOUR WORKER GUIDES**



# <u>2018</u>

STEP		35 Hour Workers				
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	<b>GRADE FOUR</b>		
1	\$ 22,780.51	\$ 26,183.63	\$ 29,578.51	\$ 32,296.68		
2	\$ 23,440.74	\$ 26,923.17	\$ 30,442.68	\$ 33,202.05		
3	\$ 24,099.94	\$ 27,668.89	\$ 31,305.82	\$ 34,109.48		
4	\$ 24,768.41	\$ 28,408.43	\$ 32,173.08	\$ 34,983.95		
5	\$ 25,416.28	\$ 29,147.97	\$ 33,037.25	\$ 35,922.28		
6	\$ 26,173.33	\$ 29,554.82	\$ 34,035.32	\$ 36,907.99		
7	\$ 26,834.59	\$ 30,748.59	\$ 34,898.46	\$ 37,818.51		
8	\$ 27,491.73	\$ 31,490.19	\$ 35,767.78	\$ 38,725.94		
9	\$ 28,154.02	\$ 32,232.82	\$ 36,630.92	\$ 39,625.13		
10	\$ 28,809.10	\$ 32,973.39	\$ 37,493.03	\$ 40,534.62		
11	\$ 29,578.51	\$ 33,820.05	\$ 38,493.16	\$ 41,606.85		
12	\$ 30,215.05	\$ 34,562.68	\$ 39,356.30	\$ 42,512.22		
13	\$ 30,896.91	\$ 35,303.25	\$ 40,219.44	\$ 43,418.62		
14	\$ 31,555.08	\$ 36,043.82	\$ 41,950.87	\$ 44,325.02		
15	\$ 33,522.54	\$ 39,271.54	\$ 45,889.54	\$ 50,449.54		
16	\$ 34,522.54	\$ 40,271.54	\$ 46,889.54	\$ 51,449.54		
17	\$ 36,586.04	\$ 43,350.04	\$ 49,968.04	\$ 54,528.04		
18	\$ 40,679.54	\$ 46,428.54	\$ 53,046.54	\$ 57,606.54		



# <u>2019</u>

STEP		35 Hour Workers			
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	<b>GRADE FOUR</b>	
1	\$ 23,463.92	\$ 26,969.13	\$ 30,465.86	\$ 33,265.58	
2	\$ 24,143.96	\$ 27,730.86	\$ 31,355.96	\$ 34,198.11	
3	\$ 24,822.93	\$ 28,498.95	\$ 32,244.99	\$ 35,132.76	
4	\$ 25,511.46	\$ 29,260.68	\$ 33,138.27	\$ 36,033.46	
5	\$ 26,178.76	\$ 30,022.40	\$ 34,028.36	\$ 37,072.04	
6	\$ 26,958.52	\$ 30,441.46	\$ 35,056.37	\$ 38,015.22	
7	\$ 27,639.62	\$ 31,671.04	\$ 35,945.41	\$ 38,953.06	
8	\$ 28,316.48	\$ 32,434.89	\$ 36,840.81	\$ 39,887.71	
9	\$ 28,998.64	\$ 33,199.80	\$ 37,729.84	\$ 40,813.88	
10	\$ 29,673.37	\$ 33,962.59	\$ 38,617.82	\$ 41,750.65	
11	\$ 30,465.86	\$ 34,834.65	\$ 39,647.95	\$ 42,855.05	
12	\$ 31,121.50	\$ 35,599.56	\$ 40,536.98	\$ 43,787.58	
13	\$ 31,823.81	\$ 36,362.35	\$ 41,426.02	\$ 44,721.17	
14	\$ 32,501.73	\$ 37,125.13	\$ 43,209.39	\$ 45,654.77	
15	\$ 34,528.21	\$ 40,449.68	\$ 47,266.22	\$ 51,963.02	
16	\$ 35,558.21	\$ 41,479.68	\$ 48,296.22	\$ 52,993.02	
17	\$ 37,683.62	\$ 44,650.54	\$ 51,467.08	\$ 56,163.88	
18	\$ 41,899.92	\$ 47,821.39	\$ 54,637.93	\$ 59,334.73	



# <u>2020</u>

STEP		35 Hour Workers				
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	<b>GRADE FOUR</b>		
1	\$ 24,167.83	\$ 27,778.20	\$ 31,379.83	\$ 34,263.54		
2	\$ 24,868.27	\$ 28,562.78	\$ 32,296.63	\$ 35,224.05		
3	\$ 25,567.61	\$ 29,353.91	\$ 33,212.33	\$ 36,186.74		
4	\$ 26,276.80	\$ 30,138.50	\$ 34,132.41	\$ 37,114.46		
5	\$ 26,964.12	\$ 30,923.07	\$ 35,049.21	\$ 38,184.20		
6	\$ 27,767.27	\$ 31,354.70	\$ 36,108.06	\$ 39,155.45		
7	\$ 28,468.80	\$ 32,621.17	\$ 37,023.77	\$ 40,121.65		
8	\$ 29,165.97	\$ 33,407.93	\$ 37,946.03	\$ 41,084.34		
9	\$ 29,868.59	\$ 34,195.79	\$ 38,861.73	\$ 42,038.29		
10	\$ 30,563.57	\$ 34,981.46	\$ 39,776.35	\$ 43,003.16		
11	\$ 31,379.83	\$ 35,879.68	\$ 40,837.38	\$ 44,140.70		
12	\$ 32,055.14	\$ 36,667.54	\$ 41,753.08	\$ 45,101.20		
13	\$ 32,778.52	\$ 37,453.22	\$ 42,668.80	\$ 46,063.42		
14	\$ 33,476.78	\$ 38,238.88	\$ 44,505.67	\$ 47,024.41		
15	\$ 35,564.05	\$ 41,663.17	\$ 48,684.20	\$ 53,521.91		
16	\$ 36,624.95	\$ 42,724.07	\$ 49,745.10	\$ 54,582.81		
17	\$ 38,814.12	\$ 45,990.05	\$ 53,011.09	\$ 57,848.79		
18	\$ 43,146.61	\$ 49,256.03	\$ 56,277.06	\$ 61,114.77		



# 

STEP		35 Hour Workers						
	GR	ADE ONE	GRA	ADE TWO	GR	ADE THREE	GR	ADE FOUR
1	\$	24,892.86	\$	28,611.54	\$	32,321.22	\$	35,291.44
2	\$	25,614.31	\$	29,419.66	\$	33,265.52	\$	36,280.77
3	\$	26,334.63	\$	30,234.52	\$	34,208.69	\$	37,272.34
4	\$	27,065.11	\$	31,042.65	\$	35,156.38	\$	38,227.89
5	\$	27,773.04	\$	31,850.76	\$	36,100.68	\$	39,329.72
6	\$	28,600.28	\$	32,295.34	\$	37,191.30	\$	40,330.11
7	\$	29,322.86	\$	33,599.80	\$	38,134.48	\$	41,325.29
8	\$	30,040.94	\$	34,410.16	\$	39,084.41	\$	42,316.87
9	\$	30,764.64	\$	35,221.66	\$	40,027.58	\$	43,299.43
10	\$	31,480.47	\$	36,030.90	\$	40,969.64	\$	44,293.25
11	\$	32,321.22	\$	36,956.07	\$	42,062.50	\$	45,464.92
12	\$	33,016.79	\$	37,767.56	\$	43,005.67	\$	46,454.23
13	\$	33,761.87	\$	38,576.81	\$	43,948.86	\$	47,445.32
14	\$	34,481.08	\$	39,386.04	\$	45,840.84	\$	48,435.14
15	\$	36,630.97	\$	42,914.06	\$	50,144.72	\$	55,127.56
16	\$	37,723.69	\$	44,005.79	\$	51,237.45	\$	56,220.29
17	\$	39,978.55	\$	47,369.75	\$	54,601.42	\$	59,584.26
18	\$	44,441.00	\$	50,733.71	\$	57,965.37	\$	62,948.21



# <u>2022</u>

STEP		35 Hour Workers				
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	GRADE FOUR		
1	\$ 25,639.64	\$ 29,469.88	\$ 33,290.85	\$ 36,350.18		
2	\$ 26,382.73	\$ 30,302.24	\$ 34,263.48	\$ 37,369.19		
3	\$ 27,124.66	\$ 31,141.55	\$ 35,234.95	\$ 38,390.51		
4	\$ 27,877.06	\$ 31,973.92	\$ 36,211.07	\$ 39,374.72		
5	\$ 28,606.23	\$ 32,806.28	\$ 37,183.70	\$ 40,509.61		
6	\$ 29,458.28	\$ 33,264.20	\$ 38,307.03	\$ 41,540.01		
7	\$ 30,202.54	\$ 34,607.79	\$ 39,278.51	\$ 42,565.04		
8	\$ 30,942.16	\$ 35,442.46	\$ 40,256.94	\$ 43,586.37		
9	\$ 31,687.57	\$ 36,278.30	\$ 41,228.40	\$ 44,598.41		
10	\$ 32,424.40	\$ 37,111.82	\$ 42,198.72	\$ 45,622.04		
11	\$ 33,290.85	\$ 38,064.75	\$ 43,324.37	\$ 46,827.92		
12	\$ 34,007.29	\$ 38,900.58	\$ 44,295.84	\$ 47,847.85		
13	\$ 34,774.72	\$ 39,734.11	\$ 45,267.32	\$ 48,868.67		
14	\$ 35,515.51	\$ 40,567.62	\$ 47,216.06	\$ 49,888.19		
15	\$ 37,729.89	\$ 44,201.48	\$ 51,649.06	\$ 56,781.38		
16	\$ 38,855.40	\$ 45,325.96	\$ 52,774.57	\$ 57,906.89		
17	\$ 41,177.90	\$ 48,790.85	\$ 56,239.46	\$ 61,371.78		
18	\$ 45,774.23	\$ 52,255.72	\$ 59,704.33	\$ 64,836.65		



# **APPENDIX**

# **40 HOUR WORKER GUIDES**



# <u>2018</u>

STEP		40 Hour Workers				
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	<b>GRADE FOUR</b>		
1	\$ 26,041.60	\$ 29,910.40	\$ 33,800.00	\$ 36,899.20		
2	\$ 26,790.00	\$ 30,763.20	\$ 34,777.60	\$ 37,939.20		
3	\$ 27,539.20	\$ 31,616.00	\$ 35,776.00	\$ 38,979.20		
4	\$ 28,288.00	\$ 32,448.00	\$ 36,753.60	\$ 39,977.60		
5	\$ 29,036.80	\$ 33,300.80	\$ 37,752.00	\$ 41,038.40		
6	\$ 29,910.40	\$ 33,779.20	\$ 38,896.00	\$ 42,182.40		
7	\$ 30,659.20	\$ 35,131.20	\$ 39,873.60	\$ 43,222.40		
8	\$ 31,408.00	\$ 35,984.00	\$ 40,872.00	\$ 44,262.40		
9	\$ 32,156.80	\$ 36,836.80	\$ 41,849.60	\$ 45,281.60		
10	\$ 32,926.40	\$ 37,668.80	\$ 42,848.00	\$ 46,321.60		
11	\$ 33,800.00	\$ 38,646.40	\$ 43,992.00	\$ 47,548.80		
12	\$ 34,528.00	\$ 39,499.20	\$ 44,969.60	\$ 48,588.80		
13	\$ 35,297.60	\$ 40,331.20	\$ 45,947.20	\$ 49,628.80		
14	\$ 36,067.20	\$ 41,184.00	\$ 47,944.00	\$ 50,648.00		
15	\$ 38,313.60	\$ 44,865.60	\$ 52,436.80	\$ 57,657.60		
16	\$ 39,457.60	\$ 46,009.60	\$ 53,580.80	\$ 58,801.60		
17	\$ 42,972.80	\$ 49,535.20	\$ 57,096.00	\$ 62,316.80		
18	\$ 46.488.00	\$ 53,060,80	\$ 60.611.20	\$ 65.832.00		



# <u>2019</u>

STEP		40 Hour Workers				
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	<b>GRADE FOUR</b>		
1	\$ 26,822.84	\$ 30,807.71	\$ 34,814.00	\$ 38,006.17		
2	\$ 27,593.70	\$ 31,686.09	\$ 35,820.92	\$ 39,077.37		
3	\$ 28,365.37	\$ 32,564.48	\$ 36,849.28	\$ 40,148.57		
4	\$ 29,136.64	\$ 33,421.44	\$ 37,856.21	\$ 41,176.92		
5	\$ 29,907.90	\$ 34,299.82	\$ 38,884.56	\$ 42,269.55		
6	\$ 30,807.71	\$ 34,792.57	\$ 40,062.88	\$ 43,447.87		
7	\$ 31,578.97	\$ 36,185.13	\$ 41,069.80	\$ 44,519.07		
8	\$ 32,350.24	\$ 37,063.52	\$ 42,098.16	\$ 45,590.27		
9	\$ 33,121.50	\$ 37,941.90	\$ 43,105.08	\$ 46,640.04		
10	\$ 33,914.19	\$ 38,798.86	\$ 44,133.44	\$ 47,711.24		
11	\$ 34,814.00	\$ 39,805.79	\$ 45,311.76	\$ 48,975.26		
12	\$ 35,563.84	\$ 40,684.17	\$ 46,318.68	\$ 50,046.46		
13	\$ 36,356.52	\$ 41,541.13	\$ 47,325.61	\$ 51,117.66		
14	\$ 37,149.21	\$ 42,419.52	\$ 49,382.32	\$ 52,167.44		
15	\$ 39,463.00	\$ 46,211.56	\$ 54,009.90	\$ 59,387.32		
16	\$ 40,641.32	\$ 47,389.88	\$ 55,188.22	\$ 60,565.64		
17	\$ 44,261.98	\$ 51,021.25	\$ 58,808.88	\$ 64,186.30		
18	\$ 47,882.64	\$ 54,652.62	\$ 62,429.53	\$ 67,806.96		



# <u>2020</u>

STEP	40 Hour Workers				
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	<b>GRADE FOUR</b>	
1	\$ 27,627.52	\$ 31,731.94	\$ 35,858.42	\$ 39,146.35	
2	\$ 28,421.51	\$ 32,636.67	\$ 36,895.54	\$ 40,249.69	
3	\$ 29,216.33	\$ 33,541.41	\$ 37,954.76	\$ 41,353.02	
4	\$ 30,010.73	\$ 34,424.08	\$ 38,991.89	\$ 42,412.22	
5	\$ 30,805.13	\$ 35,328.81	\$ 40,051.09	\$ 43,537.63	
6	\$ 31,731.94	\$ 35,836.34	\$ 41,264.76	\$ 44,751.30	
7	\$ 32,526.34	\$ 37,270.68	\$ 42,301.89	\$ 45,854.64	
8	\$ 33,320.74	\$ 38,175.42	\$ 43,361.10	\$ 46,957.98	
9	\$ 34,115.14	\$ 39,080.15	\$ 44,398.23	\$ 48,039.24	
10	\$ 34,931.61	\$ 39,962.82	\$ 45,457.44	\$ 49,142.57	
11	\$ 35,858.42	\$ 40,999.96	\$ 46,671.11	\$ 50,444.51	
12	\$ 36,630.75	\$ 41,904.69	\$ 47,708.24	\$ 51,547.85	
13	\$ 37,447.21	\$ 42,787.36	\$ 48,745.37	\$ 52,651.18	
14	\$ 38,263.68	\$ 43,692.10	\$ 50,863.79	\$ 53,732.46	
15	\$ 40,646.89	\$ 47,597.90	\$ 55,630.19	\$ 61,168.93	
16	\$ 41,860.55	\$ 48,811.57	\$ 56,843.86	\$ 62,382.60	
17	\$ 45,589.84	\$ 52,551.89	\$ 60,573.14	\$ 66,111.89	
18	\$ 49,319.11	\$ 56,292.19	\$ 64,302.41	\$ 69.841.16	



# <u>2021</u>

STEP		40 Hour Workers				
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	GR/	ADE FOUR	
1	\$ 28,456.34	\$ 32,683.89	\$ 36,934.17	\$	40,320.74	
2	\$ 29,274.15	\$ 33,615.77	\$ 38,002.40	\$	41,457.18	
3	\$ 30,092.82	\$ 34,547.65	\$ 39,093.40	\$	42,593.61	
4	\$ 30,911.05	\$ 35,456.80	\$ 40,161.64	\$	43,684.58	
5	\$ 31,729.28	\$ 36,388.67	\$ 41,252.62	\$	44,843.75	
6	\$ 32,683.89	\$ 36,911.43	\$ 42,502.70	\$	46,093.83	
7	\$ 33,502.13	\$ 38,388.80	\$ 43,570.94	\$	47,230.27	
8	\$ 34,320.36	\$ 39,320.68	\$ 44,661.93	\$	48,366.71	
9	\$ 35,138.59	\$ 40,252.55	\$ 45,730.17	\$	49,480.41	
10	\$ 35,979.55	\$ 41,161.70	\$ 46,821.16	\$	50,616.84	
11	\$ 36,934.17	\$ 42,229.95	\$ 48,071.24	\$	51,957.84	
12	\$ 37,729.67	\$ 43,161.83	\$ 49,139.48	\$	53,094.28	
13	\$ 38,570.62	\$ 44,070.98	\$ 50,207.73	\$	54,230.71	
14	\$ 39,411.59	\$ 45,002.86	\$ 52,389.70	\$	55,344.43	
15	\$ 41,866.29	\$ 49,025.83	\$ 57,299.09	\$	63,003.99	
16	\$ 43,116.36	\$ 50,275.91	\$ 58,549.17	\$	64,254.07	
17	\$ 46,957.53	\$ 54,128.44	\$ 62,390.34	\$	68,095.24	
18	\$ 50,798.68	\$ 57,980.95	\$ 66,231.48	\$	71,936.39	



# <u>2022</u>

STEP		40 Hour Workers			
	<b>GRADE ONE</b>	<b>GRADE TWO</b>	<b>GRADE THREE</b>	<b>GRADE FOUR</b>	
1	\$ 29,310.03	\$ 33,664.40	\$ 38,042.19	\$ 41,530.36	
2	\$ 30,152.37	\$ 34,624.24	\$ 39,142.47	\$ 42,700.89	
3	\$ 30,995.60	\$ 35,584.07	\$ 40,266.20	\$ 43,871.41	
4	\$ 31,838.38	\$ 36,520.50	\$ 41,366.48	\$ 44,995.11	
5	\$ 32,681.15	\$ 37,480.33	\$ 42,490.19	\$ 46,189.06	
6	\$ 33,664.40	\$ 38,018.77	\$ 43,777.78	\$ 47,476.64	
7	\$ 34,507.19	\$ 39,540.46	\$ 44,878.06	\$ 48,647.17	
8	\$ 35,349.97	\$ 40,500.30	\$ 46,001.78	\$ 49,817.71	
9	\$ 36,192.74	\$ 41,460.12	\$ 47,102.07	\$ 50,964.82	
10	\$ 37,058.93	\$ 42,396.55	\$ 48,225.79	\$ 52,135.34	
11	\$ 38,042.19	\$ 43,496.84	\$ 49,513.37	\$ 53,516.57	
12	\$ 38,861.56	\$ 44,456.68	\$ 50,613.66	\$ 54,687.10	
13	\$ 39,727.73	\$ 45,393.10	\$ 51,713.96	\$ 55,857.63	
14	\$ 40,593.93	\$ 46,352.94	\$ 53,961.39	\$ 57,004.76	
15	\$ 43,122.27	\$ 50,496.60	\$ 59,018.06	\$ 64,894.10	
16	\$ 44,409.85	\$ 51,784.18	\$ 60,305.64	\$ 66,181.69	
17	\$ 48,366.26	\$ 55,752.30	\$ 64,262.05	\$ 70,138.10	
18	\$ 52,322.64	\$ 59,720.37	\$ 68,218.42	\$ 74,094.48	



# **APPENDIX**

# **CROSSING GUARD GUIDES**



# 

First year	\$ 13.26
Second year	\$ 14.90
Third year and beyond	\$ 19.11

# 

First year	\$ 13.65
Second year	\$ 15.35
Third year and beyond	\$ 19.68

# 

First year	\$ 14.05
Second year	\$ 15.81
Third year and beyond	\$ 20.27

# 

First year	\$ 14.47
Second year	\$ 16.28
Third year and beyond	\$ 20.87

# 

First year	\$ 14.90
Second year	\$ 16.76
Third year and beyond	\$ 21.49



# APPENDIX- JOB TITLES

## **SCHEDULE A**

#### **GRADE ONE**

ACCOUNT CLERK
KEYBOARD CLERK 1
CLERK 1
TELEPHONE OPERATOR
CLERK STENOGRAPHER 1
CASHIER
RECORD SUPPORT TECHNICIAN

## **GRADE TWO**

RECORD SUPPORT TECHNICIAN 2
KEYBOARD CLERK 2
SENIOR ACCOUNT CLERK
ASSESSING AID
CLERK STENOGRAPHER 2
SENIOR CASHIER
SENIOR TELEPHONE OPERATOR

### **GRADE THREE**

CLERK 3
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNT CLERK
SECRETARY.BOARD/COMMISSION
KEYBOARD CLERK 3
CLERK STENOGRAPHER 3
PRINCIPAL PAYROLL CLERK
SECRETARIAL ASSISTANT
SECRETAERIAL ASSISTANT/TRANSCRIBING
SR. ASSESSING AIDE
RECORD SUPPORT TECHNICIAN 3

## **GRADE FOUR**

ADMINISTRATIVE CLERK
ADMINISTRATIVE SECRETARY
CLERK 4

